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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF JUDICATURE OF JAMAICA
IN COMMON LAW

SUIT NO. C.L. M-093 OF 19S5

BETWEEN VERONICA MELVILLE PLAINTIFF

AND DANIEL MELVILLE 1ST DEFENDANT
AND CHUKKA COVE FARMS LIMITED 2ND DEFENDANT
AND MELVILLE ENTERPRISES LIMITED 3RD DEFENDANT

R. B. Manderson-Jones, Patritk Foster and
Judith Harrison for the Plaintiff,
instructed by Clinton Hart & Co.

David Henry and Winsome Marsh for
the Defendants, instructed by Nunes,
Scholefield, DeLeon & Co.

Heard: April . 24, 25, 26, 27,
May 1, 2, 3, 4, and 12, 1995,

REASONS FOR JUDGMENT

<:> Reckord J.

On the 12cth of kay 1995, I delivered judgmeni in this case and promised

to put my reasons in writing., This I do now.

The plaintiff in this action is the former wife of the lst defendant who
is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Znd and 3rd defendanby, two

small private family companies.

Up to the time when the action was filed the plaintiff resided im Villa
No. 1 at Chukka Cove in the parish of St. Ann. Ths property on which this

villa is situate is owned by the 2nd defendant.

—‘(:D . 'This action was began by Originating Summons and from the affidavit
evidence presented, it appears that the plaintiff was living in this villa
from 1987, The plaintiff and the lst defendant got married in 1983 and occupied

the said villa as man and wife. For all intent and purpcses ti:ls was their

matrimonial home,

The marriage broke down and the parties separatied ia 1992, vwken the lst

defendant left tbe vills leaving the plaintiff zu sole occupation.



Consequent on the breakdown the parties had discussions concerning a
settlement. Following upoi chese discussions the lst defendant wrote a
letter to the plaintiff dated May 13, 1993 with a proposal which "would
represent the terms of the financial aspect of our sopcration as well as
any resultant divorecé. It would therefore be im licu of any maintenance

payments or other financiai arrangement between us,”

The proposal included the following:

1, That they would continue to managr Chukka Cove
Limited; +hat she would continue to occupy the
villa as its Manager.,

That the lst defendant would arramnge for the
plainriff to control fifty percaat (50%)

of the shares in the 2nd defendant company
for th: balance of her life tima.

Further discussicns took place between tha parties and their Attorneys~
dt-law and it was suggested by the plaintiff's Attorney that the proposal was
to be incorporated in three documents, namely, a Property Settlement document,

a Management Coatract and a Power of Attorney ovar shares transferred,

In the meantim: the 1st defendant had petitionad for divorce and the
plaintiff had made a claim for ancillary reliaf. in kacping with the proposal
and at the raquest of the lst defeandant's Attorncy-at-law, the plaintiff with-
drew her clainm for ancillary relief undey the Matrimanial Couses Act and made

oo claim upder the Marriod Woman's Property Act.

The Management agrocment and the Power of Attorney were duly drawn up
and executed by the parties. The plaintiff was requasted by the lst defendant
and signed a dead that lst defendant had unrestricted access to the property

excapt Villa No.l ."to which I shall bec entitled to to undisturbed possession®.

The plaintiff claims that ia breach of the agrzemeats, the 2ud defendant,
in a lettgr signed by th: lst defendant, and dated February 23, 1995 ﬁur—
ported ¢o termianate her cmployment as Managing Dicucior wish imucifate effact,
She was to ‘vacate the villa by the 27th of February 1995, and to tender her
resignation as a Director of the 2nd defendant compauy, The reacrns given for

her dismisgal were:

(i}  failure To provide breakdown of =xpenses
in rospect of Chukka Cove Villa and,
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(ii) faiiure o attend meeting summoncd by the
Chairmarn.
Based ou these, the letitrr claimed, “it is now clear ti:at you have no in-
tention of co~operating with the Chairman of the Board of Directors in the

operation of the enterprisa®.

Having rcceived this letter the plaintiff fearing that efforts would be
made to evict her from the villa which she occupied, took out an Originating
Summons in this Court on the 6th of March, 1995 acking for certain declarations

and for an order restraining the defendants frow interiering wich her possasgsgion.

In response, the d:fondant took out a summons to sirike out the originating
summons as being frivolous or vexatious or otherwise an abuse of the process
of the Court, This summone was heard by Mr. Justice Smith and dismissed on

the 23rd of March 1995 with coste against thz d:xfendants,

Thereafter, the originating summons waz set down for hearing. However,
before the hearing and obviously smarting from the dismissal of their suumoas
the defendants on the 5th of April, 1995 forcedly avicted the plaintiff from
the villa which she had bcen in undisturbed possegssion for over eight years
on the pretext that her employment had been terminstcd and she therafore had

no right to be theres. They had stolem a march om ths Court.

The originating summons came befors me for heaving on the 24th of April,
1995. Before the plaintiff opened her case, counszl for the defendant appliad
for an adjournment pending the heariag of che appeal agaipst the indgment of
Smitk J. In response, counsel for the plaintiff submitted that the application
was pot bonafide, but was iutended to delay the h:aring of the sutmuss. No
application for stay of proczeding had be.n filed. Dofendant s counsel
asked for time to filz the judgment of Smith J. This appiicction wen refused

and I directed the plaintiff's coumsel to procesd witi the summonu,

The amended originating summons dated 6th March, 1335, ou which ihe
hearing began before me sought thc following:

1. A declaration that the purported termination
tion by the First and Secound Defrndants of
th2 Pleintiti’s employment as Managing Director
of Chukka Cove Farm Limited is iu breach oX
the Management Agresment and invalid;
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3.

4,

9.

6.
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A Declaration that the purported termination
by the First and Third Defendants of the Power
of Attorney granted to the Plainciff in respect
of the portion of the Third defendant®s shares
in Chukka Cove Farm Limited is invalid and of
no effect;

A Doclaration that the occupaticn by the Plainciff
of the Villa a4t Chukka Cove Farms Limited does not
come within the terms and scope of the Management
Agreement of 24th May, 1994, made between the Second
Defandant and the Plaintiff is not governed by the
Management Agreement;

A declaration that YVONNE VERONICA MELVILLE is

and/oxr is entitled to remain:-

(a) Managing Director of the Second Defendant
CHUKKA COVE FARMS LIMITED under the terms of
a Management Agreement dated 24th May, 1994
uotwithstanding the purporied termination of
cmployment by letter datad 20th February, 1995,
from the Second Defendant to her which is in-
vaiid and of no effect for the purpose of
torminating her employment as Managing Director
under the said Management Agreemeit;

(b) in undistuzbed occupation of the Second Defendunt's
villa at Chukka Cove, Prisry P.A., Saint Amn;

(c) 1in possession of ths Power of Attormey dated
24th May, 1994, which was granted to her by the
Third Defendent MELVILLE ENTERPRISES LIMITED
notwithstanding the purported termimation of
the power by letter dated 20th February 20, 1995,
from the Third Defendant to her consequent on
the purported and invalid termination by the
Second Defcndant of her employment as Managing
Director.

Aun Order that the First, Second and Third Defendants
be and are hereby restrained by themselves their
servants, agonts or otherwisc howsoever from intexr-

oring with the Plaintiff’s cccupation of the said
Viila (No. 1) at Chukka Cove, Priory P.A. in the
parish of Saint Ann and with the exercise by her of
the said Power of Attormey granted to her on 24th May,
1994, by the Third Defondant MELVILLE ENTERPRISES
LIMITED;

Ap Order that the costs of tuls applicati-z be to the
Pleintiff co be agreed or taxed.”

At this stage Mr. Henry for the defendants indicatad he wizhsd to wake a

preliminary objection. He iuvited the Court to look at Se~+iomns 531 and

532 of the Judicature (Civil Procedure Code) Law. Thc de~larac’ .n -ad Crders

sought he said could only ba dealt with by refercnce te substantial issues

and facts which were in:dispute and ought not to bc dealt witp o2 oo originating

gummons but instead on a Writ of Summons.



The objection was over-ruled and Mr. Mauderson-Jones opeund the plaintiff’s case

by reading the plaintiff’s affidavit dated 6th of March, 1995.

The affidavit of the lst defendant on behali of nimself and the 2nd and
3xd defendants and dated the 10th of March, 1995 wery nex: read. Mr. Maaderson~
Jones submitted that thers: wer:c no disputes of any subsiarce betweer the partics.
Onc dispute as to duration of her remaining in the vilia had no bearing on the
summons as all the plairtiff was asking for was a declaration that the cccupation
of the villa did not comr within the terms and scops of the Management Agreemcnt

dated 24th March, 1994 and is not governed by the zgreamant.

The threc documents that the plaintiff was auking the Court to base its

findings on are:

1. The Management Agreement dated 24th Muy, 1994
2. The Power of Attorney dated 24th Msy, 1954

3. The lx¢ter of termination dated 20zh Fibruary, 1995,

Re - The Management Agreomoat

Mr. Mandcrson-Jones pointed gqut that under paragraph 10.2.2 the Company may
terminate cthe employment of the Managing Direetor aftsy 26 wmeeks absence dus to

incapacity.

Even if th: Managing Director cease to be a director "her employment shall
continue.” Under paragraph 2 ~ the Managing Direciar may terminata by giving
two months notice. The Company did not have this right. Mr, Mandersou-Jonas
submitted that the obvious intention in denying the company of such a right is
tha: the plainiiff had givan consideration for her smployment in licu of finaaclal

PLovision and in lizu of ancillary relief.

Under paragraph 5.1, ihe Managing Director could uno: voluntarily wesign
whils under paragraph 5.2 she could do nothing whercby Ler ofiica bocame v. cang -

virtually Director for 1ifz - save for Article 100 of the Artislss of Associatioum.

Re ~ Termination of Emp loyment

Under paragraph 13.1, the Compauy could terminate thz employment of the
Hanag;ing Direéror withoui notice or payment in lisu of aotice if *2?,1 - the
hﬂﬂ&gging_Director is guilty of any gross default or wmisconduct, o= 12.1.2 -
in #pc avent of any serious or repeated breach or mon-chservance by ihe Mapaging

Firector of any of the material stipulations ia this agrcenent.
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Mr. Manderson~Jouncs pointed out that there is no provision in the agresamnent

for termination of tne plaintiff’s employment as Yanaging Director by notice oy
by payment in lieu of notice for any of the reasous giver in the letier of
termindtion. The very fact he sald that the lettar of termination gave pay in
ileu of votice is tantamont to be an indicatiosn tuat . is not within Clause 13,
lr. Manderson~Jones submiztad that it wae clear £ba: plaintiff could terminars
#L apy time by two months notice iam writing but sv leng as she did not exsrcise
that right her employment as Mauaging Director could woi be terminated by the
company other than uw.der Ciause 13.i.1. or 13.1.2 ¢v under Clouse 10.2.2 due to
incapacity. Further; the Powsr of Attprney expreassd o be for «s long as sh+
rcwained Managing Director could therefoie have been ia the powcr of the plainiiff
for life it she choose not to resign or pur herself wichiu the provisions of

Clause 13,

Even if General Mestiig purported Lo remove her as Director pursuant to
Ariicle 10U she wouid retain her present contractusl bezefits., The comtract
was therefore aimed at giving her maximum secuiiiy of tenure of the position

of Managiag Uirector for hsr iife-time,

Plaintiff's attoraey further submiited that the- purport=d termination of her
Coulract was a monumental aud iransparent attemp? by hev former husband and Chair-
man of the company to defeat this security of tenur: snd renege on his under-

taking in their earlier axrangements as set out ia his letter.

Gounsel then imdicazed special circumstances 3u che plaintifffc. cose which

e submicted gave strong support for the declaraiisnu sought.

This is uot an urdinary master aud servani r:latiouship. The two agrIswrun.
taker together must be sm=en as the grid for securiug the plaimiiff financially
i lieu of malntenance paymeauts or other financizl arrangements Lo which she may
liuve been entitle=d in their divorce proceedings fcr waick sh= gave pood valid
cousaderations by her withdrawal of claim for ancillary relief ss dsmanded by
the defendant's lawyers.

Jther considerationg luclude the questions 4f damcges. oo submicted thac

he plaintiff could :rwt be adequately compeusatsed in damages.



1f her employment® as Managing Director was terminated invalidly she
would have lost the finaaciszl provisiona bargained fcr - $156,000.C0 per annum,;
right of Power of attoruey controiling ten percent {1U%) sharess. With her
v01c shares, she would control fifty perceaut (5C%) cceup~otion of the villa,

Also any claims for ancillary relief. It would b: tco late to get compensation

under the Married Woman's acr or claim to properuy.

Where could the plairntiff find a job giving her all these she had under

this contract?

Counsel for the plaintiff questioned as a ma ter oF law whather the letter
of wermination and reasuns foi termination come witi:i. Clsuse 13 of the Manag--
me-nl agreement. If noi; doe. it come within auy oihew provisilon of the Managament
Asgreement? Was the terminaiion valid or a nulity, Dos- the defendants have a
COaon law right of termination which overrides the piuvision of rthe contract.

1f .ormination invalid, is the plaintif{ entitied to acclaracions sought?

Counsel submitted that the letter of termination diseclosed no grounds
which could possibly come within the meaning of grrss defiult or misconduct
(Clause 13.1.1.). Neither wus there any breach wheihir savious of repeated
0f any of the stipulatious waterial or otherwise of Lhe agreement (Clause 13.1.2).
He seid thai the termination latter was invalid., The Beard had given no approval
for audit to be done and che note to proceed with ihe faventucy of the villa
was sont on the 1l4th of February, 1995, six day:s befors meeting of the Z0th

oi February when the plaintiir’s employment was Caiminai=d,

The appointment of a Manuging Director may iy be rovoked is accordance
@ith ithe terms of agreemang asppointing her. Ab cowow-y law fhere is o presump-
tiou thar an agreement for s-:rvices which Gues not provid: for termisaiion
cxpressly or by implication can bLe terminabted by reasonabls nnlice zud there
iz uo such thing as a commor law righi of terminatios. ir this case 1t docs

uot arise as thers are expressed terms for termine:.icn i weil us Lor notice,

ke - Power of Attorney

Counsel ior the plaiuciff submitced that the purpose of the Puwer ol

Aitoraey was to give the plainclff fifty percent (504} conirol over the compzny.
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Provided the plaintiff has mot elected to accept 2 wroagful termination of her
employment she should be entitled to a declaration that she continues to have a
Power of Attorney over thase shares. It was the intention of the 1lst defendant
that she have the shares for her life-time. That was his representation on
which she relied when she withdrew her applicatiom for ancillary relief and
undertook not to make any fiuancial claim against the l1st or 2nd defendauts,

He submitted that these defendants are therefore eatopped from denying the
plaintiff's interest in thsse shares and ought not to bz allowed to defeat

that intesest by being a party to the wrongful or invalid Cerminacion of her
contract or employment. I: was counsel's view that financial arrangeneut, made
for the life~time of the plaintiff has evaporated by this invalid termination
of her contract. The Court should theyefore grant a declaration that the

plaintiff was entitled to hold the Power of:Attorney.

Re = Occupation of Villa

Mr. Manderson-jonss pointed out that there was nothing in the Management
Agreement referable to thz plaintiff'a occupation of the villa, There was
nothing in the agreemeut to justify that she should vacaie residence on termina-
tion of her position as Managing Director, If no btasis under the Management
Agreement to justify the terms of the letter that she vacate the villa then her
eviction from the villa by the company was unlawful. In view of her eviction
counsel applied to further amend the originating summous seeking an order to

rcvert to the status quo.

Counsel for the defendusutis objected, This he said was efiectively an
application for mandatory injunction which is only granted in special or
exceptional circumstancas but in auy eveant canmot be granted on an originating

summons. The amendment was granted as prayed.

There is no dispute that the plaintiff was iun exclusive possession of the
vilia for several/%iggsl987,plaxntiff's attornay said. It 1s admitted by defeundants
that sh: was lawfully in the premises prior to eviciion in exclusive possession.

He submitted that that faci alone presumes that she had either the right of a tenpant

or an equitable interest in tha property.
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He referred to the case of Binilons and Another v Evans (1972) 2 AER 70.

Mr. Manderson-Jones submitted that the plaintiif in the instant case
was in exclusive possession and therefore is presumed to be a tenant. He
referred to the Kent Restriction Act, Section 27(1). 1if the plaintiff was not
a tenant she was there lawfully with their conmsenc and in exclusive possession
as part of terms of a fimancial agreement between hers-lf and her former husband.
In those circumstances she had an interest in the praperty as indicated by

Lord Deanir:gin the Binious' case and entitled to procection.

On the facts before the Court, Coumsel submittaed ihot thare was considera-
tiou flowing from the plaintiff in respect of the occupation of the villa by

financial claims she had given up by agreement not zo c¢laim an interest in the

company. He referred to the case of Warder & Another v Cooper 1970) 1 AER 1112.

In the instant case thire was no agreement betw.>n the plaintiff and the
7nd defendant as to the occupation of the yilla. Aay agreement as to occupation
was with the lst defendan:. The 2nd defeadant was cronezous in giving her notice

to quit and compoundad the ecror by evicting her. In Drone v Evangeloy & Qthers

(1978) 5 AER 437, the landlord unlawfully evicted th> tunant, the trial judge

referred to the eviction as “monstrous behaviour. When the matter reached the
Court of Appeal Lawton L.J. said the defendant's behaviour was reprehensible.

Lord Justice Goff said “Th: conduct of the landlord was completely outrageous.”

In closing Mr. Manderson-Jones submitted that once a matter is properly
before the Court whetier by way of writ originasting swamons or otherwise the
Court is entitled to exercis: all facets of the power granted to a judge of
the Supreme Court including all forms of equitable ralisnf including injunctive
celief which since end ot tho nineteenth century has bee,: fused with common
law reliefs. The judge has widest discretion to gran: consequential injunctive
relief where the justice of the case requires it. TBhe piaiuntiff, he submitted,

was entitled to the declaratiori.and injumction.
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On behalf of the defindant Mr. Henry opened his submissions by saying
“this is a very straight-forward case and plaintiff’s remedy, if any, is for
damages, Consequently, the case as framed before the Court by originating
summons 1is misconceived and must fail™. He referred io the local case of

Nola Gowe v Fay Lurch SCCA No. 42/86 (unreported) and io observation of Carberry

J.A. that it was not appropridte to use an originating sumuons to bring conten-

tious disputes before ths Court,

He submitted that the Court has to construe and make findings of fact in
a number of areas. Correspundence between the partiuws; Articles of Association
of 2nd defendant cowmpany; Minutes of Directors Meetiang; issues of fact in the
several affidavit before Court; whether plaintiff is guilty of gross default or
wmisconduct; whecher lst defendant as chairman of the Boavrd of 2nd defendant
has acted ultra vires his powcrs in light of the provisious of the articles of
the company in particular whether the proposal for audit or inventory was from
the Board or Chairman in his persomal capacity. On tho question of the dismissal
Mr. Henry referred to paragraph 300 of Halsbury's Laws of England 4th Edition,

volume 16 headlined Grounds for dismissal subsequsatly.

"The commen law rule relating te wrongful dismissal
is that provided good cause for dismissal in fact
existed, it is immaterial whether or not it was
known to the employer at the time of dismissal.

A summary dismissal can therefore bc justified

by facts only ascertained by the employecr subse-
quently to the dismissal, and on grounds diffcring
from those alleged at the time ....."

Mr. Henry submitted that the principal issue befors Court is essentially
a master and servant. This rclationship is founded upon trust and confidence
of the cmployer in the employve. Paragraph 20 of the lat defendant’s affidavit
of the 10th of March, 1995, is a statement that the defandant has lost trust
and confidence in the plaiuntiff with respect of the management of its affairs.
Faced with this situation a Court will not order spscific performance as a

private law remedy.

The plaintiff’s uncooperativeness in cowplyirg with reasonable request
for an internal audit illustrates her stance of defiance. The financial

management by the plaintiff is being questioned.
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Defendant discovers that the company is in a position of loss and takes steps
to resolve. Plaintiff takes away horses tack, sells h=rself cowmpany property.
This is gross misconduci. Thc plaintiff has failed co provids an inventory as
required and failed to attond meeting. Because of her attitude and conduct,
the 2nd defendant had to terminate the management agrecment. Other arcas of
misconduct include burning of papers in defendant's office, taking defendant's
rzliable vehicle removing files and increasingher salary without the Board's

approval,

tir. Henry submitted that it was clear from ali these, that the 2nd defendant
had more than adequatie grouads to terminate the plaineiff’s employment. See
Clauses 13.1.1 and 13.1.2 and 3 and 4 of the Management Agreement. The directions
given to the plaiutiff wer.: reasonable and necessary in the interest of the

company.

The fact that the employer made a payment to the plaintiff ia licu of notice
is irrelevant and immaterial, it was 4 gratuitous paym:ml (sesz paragraph 13 of

defendant's affidavit dated 10th March, 1995.

Ke «~ Termination

Mr. Henry subuitted that as a general rule the Court will not emnforce
a contract of personal cmployment. That the instan: cas< the declaratioun orders
sought is effectively to have the plaintiff re-instat«d as Managing Diractor.
This case does not fall within the exceptional rule wheruby the Court will grant
such enforcement where therc romains a strong elemzut of continuing mutual con-
fidence between the partiss. In this case the relacionsihip has been irreparably

damagnd— see Hill v C. A. Parsous Ltd. (1971) 3 AER i345. Saunders & Others v

Earnest A. Neale Ltd. (1974) 3 AER 327. Since the instaat case is an ordinary

case of master and servant the repudiation of the comiract puts an end to it and

th. employee's right against the employer, if any, can ouly be for damages.

Mr. Henry submitted in that in the abseac: of staiute it is not open to
this Court to find that thz tormination was a nulity siacc it falls in the case
of an ordinary coutract of mastcr and servant. H: referred to two cases of

exceptional circumstances arising out of a statutory scheme. See Vine v National

Dock Labour Board (1957) A/C 44u. Jamaica Broadcastirg Corporation v National

Workers Union etal - 8.C.C.A. 14 & 15/81 (unreportcd).
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Rofl oi vanaging Direcior ia the company

Primary roll of Managing DVirector is inplimentarion of Board's decision and
poiicies. She is au employec of the company -~ takes diractions from che officers.
Har entitlement to exercise¢ voting rights over shares in the 2nd defendant was

hers only so long as she vemaiuned Managing Directoyr.

Occupation of Villa

This falls outaidz of the terms of the Managemout lLgreewent. Mr., Henry
submitted that there wes no onus on the defendant to demonstrate a right to
uviet or to take possession of its premises., It is the plamaciff who wmust
demonstrate the existencs: of a right created by some agresment between the partis
sutitling her to remais in occupation. The plaintifi must satisfy the Court
that there has been some l:gal interest in her favour in the premises granted
o her by the 2nd defendant. 1t is not in the Managemsnt Agreement and not in
the Power oi Attorney. The 2nd defendant's positisa has always been that it
will permit the plaintiff to occupy its villa as long as ihe plaiutiff remains
Managing Director. It has never beem to crzate any iegal iuterest to the plaintiff

in the villa,

Lecter of proposal from lsi defendant to plaintiff daued 13.5.93

Mr. Henry aghs the Court to note that this lecter came from Daniel Melville
in his personal capacity, not from Chukka Cove Limited - Znd defendant which
owns the villa. The considerations spoken of in the ietter is to the lst
defendant. The Court must ask whether this letter comsiitutes day agreement

between the 2nd defendant and the plaintiff

The plaintiff's cese is that she is a tenant of ke 2nd defendant who ars
the parties; who is the landlord? The lst defendarc has no authority to bind
the 2nd defendant. Any promis: made by him must be in his personal capacity.
btven If there is presumption that there is a tenancy arvangement between plainciff
e«nd 2nd defendant whereby she would occupy the villa fYor life the cousideration
for rental belng the withdrawal of her action for a.ciilary relief, Mr. Henry
submitted that the consideration was not paid to the 2ud defendant but to the

1st defendant persoually.
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Consaquently there is no cocporate benefit to be derived bv the Znd defendant

and therefore that agreement would be void and of no -ffect - See Rolled Steel

Product (Holding) Ltd. v British Steel Corp. & Others (1985) 3 AER 52.

If the plaiuriff is mot a tenant, she is not protected by thes Rent
Restriction Act. As the Court is dealing with the creationm of an interest
in land, it must be supported by evidence in writing in keeping with the
provisions of the statute of freud. As a matter of law the plainiiff had no
right to be in the vills notwiihstanding Mr. Melvills’s letter as to reason for

the termination of her employment. See Strect v Mountford (Supra),

Was the plaintiff’s occupation a tenancy or a liconcs? What was the
agrzement asked Mr. Henvry? Does it grant executive possession for a fixed
or perivdic term - does it provide for rental? 2rz is aothing before the
Couzt that there was inicntion to create legal relationship. Although she
claims to have a life Intercst arising from an oral representation, she had said
ino a previous affidavit that she was a contractual licensee. He submitted she
Was 4 mere licuusee., There was no quantification ix money in respect of remtal.

Sc¢: Montaque v Browaing (Supra).

In the case of Bipion'g & Another v Evans (Supra) none of the judges

SRR

held this to be a tenancy but a contracted licensec.

In the case of Wardzar & Another v Cooper (Supra), the instant case is

distinguishable as there is no provision in the Jamazics Svatute for a person
<0 b& “deemed a tenant”. Tnerc is nothing in the statute to prevent the

2nd defendant from taikiug the course it took - it commiz’ od no tort.

If therc was a t2nancy agreement as alleged and iive rental payable under
that agreemeut is the giving up by the plaintiff cf hei rights to claim ancillary
relief from the lst defendant, that agreement would bz ultra vires the objects
of the 2nd defendant and aot enforceable by the plainiiff since the plaintiff
had knowiedge that the rolevaat transsction was enfervd intc in furtherance of
purposes not duthorised by th: company.

The Cuse of Drane v dy.ngelou & Others (1978) 2 AAK, 432 is distinguish-

able as there is no dispute that this was a landlord zud tenant relationship.
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r2 - Powers of Court to grant Mandatory Imjunction

See Halsbury's Laws of England, 4th Edition Volume 24, paragraph 846.

Mr. Henry submitted that a mandatory injunction will nermally be granted
at trial and in exceptiomal cases on interluctory application. The Court would
wish to have before it all the evidence and be in a position to weigh the merit
of the respective cases iu light of the facts befors it. It is importamt for
the Court to assess the credibility cf the witnesses on both sides as a critical

factor in deciding wherz che truth lies.

Iu Jamaica the originating summons is restricted by virtue of Section 531,
531D, Civil Yrocedurs Code is confined tc the determination of consgtruction arising
under an instrument, declaration of the right of persons interested etc. 8o
for the plaintiff to obtain a mandatory injunction on an originating summons;
she would have to place before the Court some Dzcd, Will or other written
instrument or some Law or instrument under a Law for the Court's consideration
as being the basis for the grant. Nome of these have been satrisfied in the

instant case.

In Kediand Bricks Ltd. v Morris (1970) A/C 665, the following principles were

et out by Lord Upjohn on where mandatory injunction was appropriate.
1. A mandatory injunction can only be granted
when plaintiff has a very strong probability upon the
facts that grave damags will acrue to him in
the future. It is a jurisdiction to be
sxercised sparingly, but in the proper case
uvhesitatingly.

2. Damagos will not be a suificient or adequate
remedy if such damage does happen.

In che instant case the plaintiff has lost her job as Managing Director.
der salary is known, therefore any damage is eazily quantifiable. The plaintiff
hus lost voting rights over 10% share holding over 2nd defendant. Evidence would
be reyuired to be preaseated by the plaintiff thac this represented in real terms
a loss to her which could not be compensated in damages. She still had control
over 40% ol the shares. Thz plainciff must prove substautial damage by reason
ot tne alleged breach, Mz. Heary's application for plaint iff aad her son Troy
Brenuon to attend ror cross—examination on their sffidavit was refused by the

Court.
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It was Mr. Henry's submission that the Court in sxercising its jurisdic-
rion in a matter of this nature would be granting an squitable remedy. Conse-
quently, the Court must look at the conduct of tha plaiantiff who is asking for
orvd.rs on her behalf. It is the uncontrovertable =vidsunce of Mr. Melville that
the plaintiff has deliberatcly pursued a path designed =o benefit herself at
the =xpense of the Znd dafendant. This plaintiff has uot come to Court with clean
hands and a Court of equicy will not act in favour of a plaintiff in these

circuustancses.

Re - Mandatory Injunction

In response, Mr, Hundvrscn-—Jones indicated that upplication was originally
mude for a prohibitory isjuucticn but the defendarnits took matters into their
own hands, carried out an unlawful eviction while th- natter was bafore the
Court in an effort to steal a march on the plaintiff. The Court had a right
and duty to put back the plaintiff to restore the scatus guo anti.

Sec Warder & Apor. v Cooper (BSupra) origiusting sumaovas. in thc Jamaica Broad-

casting Corporation casc there was no question abour fha use of an originating

summons in obtaining the declaration sought. This was upheld by the Court of

Appaal.

The Statute oi fraud dots mot prohibit oral agrrumont for transfer of lands.

It merely requires them te be evideaced in wricing and the evidence befors the
Court are in the lcrter fxom defendant dated 13t day, 1992; the letter from
“r. Brooks datud 18th Hovember, 1993 and paragraph ZU of the affidavit of thue

Jna defendant dated 28th Fobruary, 1995.

Coiporate Benefits

in paragraph 35 of the affidavit of the lst deferdant dated 10th March, 1995
he deponed thav the basis of the plaintiff's occupation of the villa was to

facilitate the management of ihe 2nd defandanc's busincus.

¥ - Conslderation

Counscl for the plaintiff pointcd out that i 137 defeudant’s letter
of tue 13th May, 1993 formed part of ihe agrecmeut. 5o also paragraph 16(e)

oi the lst defendant®s affidavic dated 28th February, 159Y5.
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"That thc appllcant would not make any claims
agaiust me for maintenance or fimancial support
or makz any claim against the 2nd defendaut or
for any interest in ic.”
This, he submitted; was svidence of consideration moving from the plaintiff to

the 2nd defendant.

Exclusive Possession

There is the actual fact of possession from which the plaintiff was evicted.
She had unrestricted accrss to the villa - Sea paragraph 16 of her affidavit dated

1Cch March, 19Y5.

kent Restriciioo sct.

Counsel submits that the plaintiff comes within the meaning of 'tenant'
for the purpose of this Act. The definition in Clause 2 is not exclusive -
would include persous duriving ticle frow the origipal teuant. This villa was
the matrimonial home of the plaintiff and lst defendant. After the relation-
ohip broke down the Znd dufendant makes new arrangemsnts — the plainiiff to
rewain in the villa. Counsecl suggested that even 1f she was found o be a
contractual licensee she would be within the scope of Zection 27. 3y throwilag
out the plaintiff the defendanis have doue the mischicf which ihe Act was
designed to prevent. If the termination cf her wuployment was wrongful or in-
valid she should be put back in the villa since her buing there did not arise
from the management contract and the terms of her cmployment, but obviously

under some other agreamcut.

Grounds of dismissal

aAll but one of the various allegations made against the plaintiff wers
koown co the dafendant bufors the termination of hur s rvices. See Mr. Mellville's
affidavit of the 10th March, 1995 paragraph 16-12. The very af{fidavit of the
dofendant states that the rcasons for the termiunation are set out in the lenter
of terminaiion. 4ll other allegations are therefore irrelevant.

Exceptional circumstances

1. Tnhe employer —~ the second deferdsui is a
small fewily cowpany.

4o The employee - plaintiff conirollsd 507 of
the sharz2s and voting rights

Th2 plaintiff was also a dirzcior ot the Company
in @u @atrenched position wharz, by the terws

of hor employment, she could uot resign and could
no*. bs rotar :d.
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The chairman was her husband. He controllsd
the remaining shares im the company. He acted
on behali of the employer and tho «mployer's
businesc with the employee in that -

(a) hc signed the Management Comiract; he
signed the Power of Attorney; he chaired
the bBoard Meeting om the 26.2.95 which
cousidered her removal; he propused to
che meeting that the plaintiii be dis-
missed; he put the motionfw her dis-
missal; he wrote and signsid the letter
oi dismissal. e is the ouly officer
of the company giving atfidavic e¢vidence
ot behalf of the employer in this issue.

The cortract of employment was oniy part of a
financial settlement betwezn the husband and 7ife
pui in place by the husband as chairman of the
compray in lieu of maintenavc: paywenis and ocher
fiunancial arrangements ia retura for which chie
piefusifs withdrew her applicatios for ancillary
ielicf and undertook not to maks any further claim
apalust wim or the company.

Tnc intention of the parties as to which there is no
dispuie was -~

(1) shc would control 50% of the shares in the
2nd defendant for life;

(i1) she would be entrenched ac Licuctorg

(1ii) she would contimnue to rzside at the cmployer's

villa whers she residing.since 1987 :as ‘long as
sh. remained Manager.

The management agreement was sp:cifically designed to
guaranies the employee as a iormar spouse total sccuricy
of tenurc indefinately subjzct ¢ (&) her voluntary
terminsfion (b) summary dismissal on clearly defined
grounds (c¢) incapacity for 2& wocks out of 5Z.

This is why the management agraomear did not provide
fcr termination by notice ou ithz part of the employer.
Thery was even a provision {Cluuse 12) that her
employment would contiaue eveu i she ceased being
Managing DIirector. In short i: was an exceptionsl
contract of employmeant.

Damages ot an adeyuste resmedy.

Article 112 of the Ariicles of Assoclation uxpr.ssly provices Lhat

termination of Mamagiug Dirvector contract must bz in accordance with the terms

of the contract. This provision transforms what would be an ord-nary breach

into a void act. 7Th: compary has mo power to termina:i= inm breach of the

agreenment.



Muiual Confidence

There is nothing in th: evidence in this case to suggest any lack of mutual
confadence between the company as such as distinet from her former husband and the
cuployee. The allegations mentioned in che minute and the letter of terminastion
caiinot account to any serious misconduct or any ground for lack of confidence in

the plaintiff,

Paragraph 13 of the defendant's affidavit of the 10th March, 1995 disclosed
ithat the Chairman and the Company had rewarded the plaintiff for work she had
praviously done in devzloping the Znd defendant's company. There must have bszeg

confldence then.

Finally it was submittud by Counsel for the plaintiif, that from the evidence
before the Court; one could not infer that there was such a degree of lack of
confidence that could possible warrant on the'part of the company and could poszible
cunstitute reason for ith: Court not granting the declaration sought by the plaintiff
who iogether with her sone controlled 50 of the company as was the intantion at
th time the HMunagement Contract was made. She clearly stands to lose the most
by the termination of her sarvices ia breach of contract uand of the articles of

assoclation which cannot adequately be remedied in dawages.

FINDINGS
Tnis action arose becausc ot two main reasons:
(1) the plaintiff was dismissed from her pust
of Managing Director of the 2nd defendant’s
company aud
(ii) the plaintiff was threatened with siection by

the Znd du:fendant from the villa that she occupied
on 2ad dsfendant's property.

With regards to (i) above the terms and conditions of her employment as
Managing Director are s=¢ oui in a document referved to as a 'Management Agresment’

datud Z4th May, 1994 butwzen the plaintifi and Chukka Cove Farms Limited.
Varagraph 2, undzr tomms of employment is as follows:

“The employm¢nt of the Managing Dixccter
commences on the 20th day of Jamuary, 1994,
and 1s subjgucht tu termiaacion by the tauaging
biractor givicg co the amployer twoe (<) monCus
notice in writiug and as provided &: low.
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Paragraph 5{1) provides that during her employment
the Mmancging Director shall not voluntarily resign
4s a Dirsctor of the company.

Under paragraph 10.2.2 the cumpuity may terminate the
cmploym:nt of the Managing Direcior if due to incapacity
she is absent from work 26 wecks in #uy 52 counsecutive
weeks.,

Paragrapi 12 "Termination of Dirceciorship" states as
foliows:

"1f during ncr employment uuder this agreement
the Mauaging Director shall ruasc¢ ito be a Director
of the company (otherwise than by reason of her
dcatn, resignacion or disqualification or by
staiuis cr court order) her employment shall
conclie 48 if it had been iu (e office of
exacutive manager of the company and the terms
of rhis ugreemeat (other thao those relating

to che holding of orfice of dircctor) shall
conitinue in tull force and ¢ffoet and the
tanaping Dircctor shall have uo claims against
the company in respect of such cusser.”

raragraph 13.1 “Swmmary of Termination cf empioymcat" 1s as follows:

13.1. Tac employmeni of the Managing Director ety
be terminated by the Compai.y without mnotice or
puwyment in lieu ef notice,

13.1.1. If ‘he ¥Manuaging Dirwctor is guilty of amy gross
default or misconduct in conucction with or
2ffeciing the business of ths company or any
subsidiary or assoclated company to which she
is required by this agresment to render services
or

13.1.2, in the evint of aay serious or repeated breach
or non-observance by tha Managing Director of
atty of the material stipulations contained in
this dgreewment as ...... (othuers not applicable).

Paragraph 16 - Engirs widerstanding:

This agrcement cmbodies the entire wnderstanding of
the parties in respect of employmeire of the Mauaging
Dirzctor to the Company.....

This agreement followed from a leiter from the lst dciendant to the pleiuntiff
daiod may 13, 1993 whicih e proposed "would reprugsent the cerms ot the finaucial
«GpeCt Of our seperation as well as any rusultant divoerce. 1t would ther«fora
be in licu of any maincenancs paymenis or dily other fipancial arrangemenc betwaeun
us®,

she would continue to manage Chukka Cove Limi:od zud occupy the villa as
Hanager,

He wouid put in place an arrangement whereby shi: would control 507 of cna

vhiares of the company. The 3rd defendant would ex:cute a Power of Atvorney giviag

her voting rights over 1UZ of its shares in the 2nd defendant's company.
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The 5U% made up by 20% each from her two sous and 107 from the 3rd

defendant and she would znjoy this privilege for the balance of her life—time.

It is to be notad that when the Power of Aciorney was signzd the power
was ''to continue in force for so long as the Attorney shall be the Managing
virector of Chukka Cove ¥Fam Limited" and not for “th: balance of her life-

time"

a8 proposed iu tne letter of the 13th #ay, 1993 and agrecd to by the
plaintiff. (See powz2r oi atiorney dated 24th May, 1995 paragraph 2).

What were che reasons given ior dismissal?

See lecler dateu rubruary 20, 1995, from Chukka Cove Farm Limited. Her
zmployment as Managing Diractor was terminated with immediate effect. The 4th

paragraph giving the rcasous as follows:

“Basod upon the following eveats, it is now
clzar that you have no intention of co-operating
wich fhi Chairman of the Board of Directors imn
the operation of the enterprise (a) you have up
to aow failed to provide the: broakdown of the
exponses in respect of “Chukka Cuve Villa®
decpite being requested to do s¢ by letter

datcd January 17, 1985, (p) Ou the 8th instant

I call.d and arranged a maeting to be held on
the 16th iustant at the farm av 9:00 a.m.

I arrived there only to be iniormed that you
dpsentad yours:lf on the basis cliet you had
anothey mecting to attend. You however failed
to give any adequate notice sf your intention to
be absoui®.

The penultimati paragraph reads:
“is a result of the termination of your cmployment,

you ar¢ required to vacate the couwpaay's villa by
the Z6kh day of February, 1955.°

It is apparent that after che letter.nf the 17th of January, 1995, thers
wiere further discusgions Detwewen the parties because on February 14, 1995, the
iollowing fax wessage was sunt by Mr. Albart Lec, once of the Directors of the
Bodrd to the plaintiff:

kes Inventory of Viila®
"This is to advise that Price Wator House does
not nave a listing of the furuliture and Fixtures

of ihe Villa. As such, you may proceed with the
Inventory as discussed at th: last Board Meetiag”,

The l4th February, 1995 was a Tuesday. Thzre is mo evidence as to
when this Yax message was zeceived by her, Wedn:sday, Thursday and Friday were

ihe only three _ repular working days left in that week.

-
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From all che relevaui cvideuce it is not difficult to infer that the
zud defendant knowingly brzachwd the contract and evictsd the plaintiff be-
iirving that the only romedy was in damages., He said so in his affidavit of
the 28th of February, 1995 paragraph Z7. The plainciff was becoming a thorn iu

their flesh sad they werc prepared Lo get rid of huy and pay for it.

Winat ari the remedi.s for Hreach of Contraci?

The general ruls is chat in the ordinary cas:z of master aau servant th
unilateral repudiatiore of thi: coutract of e¢mployment by the waster efiectively
cerminated that concracr amd the only remedy of a scrvant who had been wrougfully

provented froim warning bils wages lay 1o damages.

along witn this geueral rule there is also « uwormal rule of practice that
a Court will not wutorcs : coutract of employm.at :iihor by way of specific
performaiice or by the graatiug of an injunction thei would have a similar cffeet

or by way of granting a docleration that a contrac: still subsists,

wWhile agrecing with these rules the plaintiff claims that this is no
“ordinary case", buc én cxccpiional case of wrongful dismissal chervby leaving

the contrace of employwelt in cxlsiunce.

Wuat makes this case czceptional?

The plaintitf claims the Znd defendant is a cmell family company. The
Chzirman was her former husband. She coatrelled 507 of the voring rights;

sh. was a Director ol tae company.

The coniract of cmploywm:nt was ouly a pari of a timancial settlement pul
+u place by ner form~i imicbarda in return for wnich she withdrew her application
ior aucillary relief; she guve an undcriaking wot o shke any further claim

against the lst or Zow drfondants.

The Management Agre-meni was spucifically dusignad to guarantee the plaiuntiff

sceuraty of tenuri ind:iinutoly (see Clause 12).  She could uot resiga 48 @

pirictor - (Clause 5.1).
Sne was uot subjeck .o ratirement by rotaiion - {Claus2 5.3).

pamagus would uot be an adeyuabe remedy.



The defunice conieades that since the purgoual zrlatiouship and confidence
between the parties had brouken down it would be wromy to enforce a contract

which is basod on confidentinl relationship ~ See Hill v C.A, Yarsons Co, iid.

(1971) 3 AEK vage 1345,

In the affidavii of tu: 10th of March, 1955, at. paragraph 13 the 1st
defendant complimeni»d che plaintiff for work she hsd picviously done in assisy~
1ug him to develop the Zua defendant’s property. It seems from subscguent avanis
chai the relatioasnip betwarn the lst defendant aud plaintiff had deterioratad.
Sui what of che relaviouship between the plaintifl and the company ind defoendant?
ihe Boacd of Dircctors rune che company. BSave {ox the contents of the lettey
of tevmination of her ewployment dated 20.2.95 ihicce is no evidence of any lack

«f couiidince of the Beard of Directors iu the pleintifi.

There is no evidence of the age of the piainciff, but it is obvious she is

A0t a young purson. Sha is the mother of two childr.n both being Directors of
il compauy. The likelibood of her finding suitabic smployment with the benwifits
orovided under this contraci aud other bencfits enjoyed e.g. the undisturbud
vccupacrion ob the vilia, i extremely rewote. If is cluar therefore that damages
will not sufficc and ¥ so fiad. Y further find ihat cthis is uot the ordinary
casc of master and servant sod that bicause of the specisl circumstances exisling
I graat the declaracticn that the relacion of master aznd servaat is still sub-

sisting and grant an injouction to stop the 2nd defoudsnr treating it as at an und,

This question was discussed in the Court of appiul ia rthe cas2 of The Jsueics

civadcasting Corporatiun v National Workers iUnion & Oth-rs $5.C.C.ia Nos, 14 and 13

vi 1901 (unrzported) wheic under a contract of pe sural service an injunceion

wos granted restraining the Jamaica Broadeasting Corpovation from dismissing
cowe of 1is workers aithough the relatiouship of mutual confidence between the

cwployer and emplo, ess had ¢ sed tO cxist. Su» aisc Saundeis and Others v

karpest A. Neale Ltd. (15/a) 3 AEK 327 where ths fourt found that no ezceptional

circumstunces existed ior sil mutual contidence had buesn destroyed,

Conseyuent upon wy declaration that the relaiionship is still subsisting,
tie: plaiatitf's right o oxercise voting rights u.d~v ithe Power of Attorney 16
@isc stili subsistiug and ihe purported terminaticu LY the 3rd defendant is of

.0 «rfect.
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L aleXU w8Ta €0 Tl guosiicn of fhw ocCup=inu.a ni the viila. The attorneys
for all the parties agrs» ihat the occupation by «he plaintiff of the villa
dees not come within the icxms and scope of the Manageuwent Agreement. Thernfors

vhe declaracvion sought i» this regard is hereb- icarued,
] 8 7

What arc the circuwmstances under which the plaineiff occupiea the vilia?
Fyom vhe atilcavit evideacs she pegan residing ihurs shortly after it was built
iv 1307, She got married to the ist defendant ia 1389 aud they both occupicd
the: villa as thedir mutrimonial home. The marriag” broxe down and the lIst
dekendant left the viiio in 199Z. Siuce then ibn plaintiif has been living
chere alone. The vills is vwued by the 2nd def.oadani, The plaintiff says ia
her affidaviec of thi 23rd February, 1995, pardgraph 6, that she had pumercus
digcussions with ihe lst dzfindant in his capacity 25 Chairwman of the Znd
dzfendaut avd on his owa behalr, «ad it was agizied, iuicy alia, that she would
uccupy the villa for tho duration of her life tim:. Iu his uffldavit of the
10th of march, 1995, tha lst defendant states chat the basis on which the
plaintiff occupicd ithe villa was that she was the lianeging Diractor of cthe

coLpany.

In what capacity wac the pluintifr oceupying che villa? Was she a tenawnt,
couiractual licensee or trosspasser? The defendssts contend that eight days
after the letter of turminarion of her services. shic failed to vacate the vills
and thervafrer she bucaw: a Lvesspasser which eatitizd them to eviet her.

Ou the othier haud thwe plaintitf claims to be a cewant and eaticled to the pro-

cection of the Rent Kegoxiction Act from eviccion wi-hout an order of the Court,

"To coustitute a tununey the occupier musi bo granted exclusive possession
i0Y a iixed or prriodic t-im c.tltdin in considuvsiion of a premium or periodic
payweuts. The grant may b. -Zpress, or may b inforred where the owner accepie

weekly or other periodic paymiuts from the occupiov.” Sew Street v Mountiord

(1985) 2 AER 28% Per Lord Tompleman at 294,

There ic no dispuic ithat the plaiatiff enjoved uwadisturbed possession of
the villa ~ (Sez the provisc to th. Deed sigaed by the plaintiff dated 6th of
april, 1994). There iz no disput~ thai the lst dufzudiant offered her conmtrol of
30% of the shares In the cowpany for the balaacy of her 1ife time - (sce leticr

aarwd May 13, 1963).



In this same letter he would be happy for her to coniinue to manage and occupy
‘he villa while she was manager wich a proviso aot o warry or enter into any
comwon law relatiocsiip. There is no dispuce thzi the parties had subsequent

discussious.

The proviso was romoved (see paragraph 8 of the ist dercadant's affidavit

of the 10th March, 1995).

Arising from Lhes: discussions the plaintiff coutinds that the lst
Qliendant orally orfered her occupation of the ville for life iun keeping wich
a similar offer regavdiug the sharces. The lst defeudani has denied making this
utfer. However, baced oo the exceptional contraci of employment eantered with
the plaintiti, I azecept her avidence that she was offered life occupancy of ths

villa by the lst dufuindaut which she accepted.

Was there any considerailon? The second pacagraph of his letter of the

13ch of riwy, 1993, to eth= plaintift, the lst deufendant stated:

“This proposal would represent tb:s ¢crams of the
financial aspect of our seperatios as well as
auy resultant daverce, It would thurafore be
in ficu of any maluceuance paymencs or other
financial avrangements.”

fiz 1lst

T

In paragraph is(e) of liis affidavic dated 28uh February, 1995,
defendant expanded on the lettcr by scating that he «greed with the plaintifi
“chat the applicant (plaineifs) would not make any claims sgainst we for maiu-
Lenance or finuncial support o wake any claims cgaliust the 2nd defendant or

for any interest ian 4t”,

Accepting thise prcposals the plaintiff wot only withdrew her claim
against the lst defendant for maintunance which hsd bo-n filed in Court under
the Macrimonidi Causues Lct bul also refrained from taking action which was
oL to her under tiwe farrica wowan's Prepurty aAct against either the lst
0T 2ud defendaants,

Couusel for tine plaiatiff submits that this forbiarance to sue repressnzed
evidence of comsicevativo moviug from the plainciff co tie lst aed 2aod

vorendants. 1o Moutayu.o and Auother v Browning and Acoiher (19543 1 W.L.R 1030

Deunlag L.J. (as he then was) said at page 1046,
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"Rent is usually quastirfied ia monwy acd paid
in moiacy, but it is not necessary in Law that
it always should bz so".

bs continued at pag= U047,

"It seens to we that even undur the Hent Acts,

in cases when rent is mot payable iu mouney but

iy kind as in goods aund services, theu so lonyg

as the pariies have by agreemeni yusatified the
value in tecms of money, the sum 80 quantified

is the rent of the house within riw: meaning of the
Reut Zesteiction Act.”

I accept the plaintiff's contention that this forvbrarance to sue represzated
a4 iinanclal benefii to th: lst and 2nd defazndants that this benefit is yuantifiapis
i verms Of money and although tihe 2vdce sum was not arrived at, the arrangeument
was agreed upoir by the partics, 1 find thereforz that this sum, whatever it may
be, represented the ren: paid by the plainciff to the 2nd defendant for the

oceupation of the villa,

sased upon my fiandings of exclusive possession, fixcd period of time for
1ifs and rent, I held that the plaiantiff is a tenanc within the meaning of ths

kent kestriction Act. She whsreiore enjoys the protectiou of Section 27 of the

Act which prevents eviction without amn crder of che Courk.

in Drane v Evangelou » Others (1978) 2 AiR P. 437, wherz ths landlord uir-

lawfully evicted the tonane, the trial judge rteferrad co the evictioun as "Monsirous
buhsviour”. in the Court of Appeal, Lord Justice Lawton in gilving the judguoent
of the Court, said "1 am surprised that this appeal has bzen made to this Courc.
The defendsant’s behaviour was reprehcusibic -—- it is vight and just thac the
plaintifi should be put back where he is eutitled to b2 ... this Courc should
cake overy step it can to sw- that landlords who behaved like the defendant in
this cuse has behaved should gat no benefit whatsowv:t frow what they have done”.
Ar page 443 of che judgment tho learned Lord Justice conmtisnued,

“To dueprive a man of a roof over his houad, is

iu my judgmert, onc of che worst rorts which can

be cormicrizd. It causes streus, worry aud anxiety.

1t brings the law into disrepute if puople like

the landlord can act with impunity in the way he

did .... Yarliamonc has saild that thas kind of

conduct 15 suffici:ntly serious to be made a

criminal sffence'.

Lord Jusiice Coff said that “ene conduct of the
landlovd¢ was completaly outragecus®.

I respectfully adopy tusse words as my own.
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This is th. position where the plainviff is a :senant. What would be
ihe. position, if on veview it turns out that the occupation was under a licence

rather thau as a toaauny?

in Warder & Anothcs v Coopar (1970)1 A.E.R. P, 1117 the employee who

Qad exciusive possession ¢f promises otherwise tiwn s = tenant was '‘deemed” to

have been o tunaut undur teo English Rent Acc. Ouy Law makes no such provision,

dowcver, in ths case of Sinious & Another v Evuans (1972) 2 A.E.R. ¥, 70

there was agreemsnt by the cmploywr for the widow of the: vmployee to occupy
a house rent free for 1ifs, and it wag held that the agreemont conferred on
e s contractuad licence Lo occupy e €OCLage f0r ©in. Cest of her life -

chai as a contractual licenser she had acquiraed an wquitable interest in the

coctage which the Couri wouid prutect by injuanciion.

As stated bifore, I accept the wvidence of #hie plaintiff chat the lst
detendant end herself had agrecd for her to occupy the villa for the rest
of wr life. Adopting i¢be principles in the Bimmious'® case, the agreement, 1if
noi coastituting a tunaucy it did confer on her on cquitable interest in tho
vilie which the Court would protect by graating ai lujunction to restrain the

defendans crom turning nar out,

As i{he subsiguent ovaents chow, before tha heariag of the application to
rastrain che defendants cane up, the defendanc forcoubly evicted the plaintiiff
iroumr ine villa whichi she nad beew in undisturbed possession for over eight
yurs.  They had stolen a3 march on the Court., I exiortain no doubts that an
ingunction would havi been granted. The defcadanve must have had similar feacs,

hpce chely pre~cmpiiv: ccoeon.

in my oral judsmeini, £ rceferred to the accioun o: the defendants as ‘'out-
tagcously wrong” and ccucinure ~ Ythis iz even wosso when from all appearances
the defeerdants were aculag under logal advise. Hven as we speak today there are
wwyers who are suppurting this utierly incguivablic sad iilegal actiou by thu

di fsadants™, L1 have had ug reoson sance then Lo chung: this view.

#inally, im dealing with this aspect of the case, on the evidence and
subwisuions made, che qu.siion of estoppel must be considered. Wheu the lst
deizndani. wrote the plasnti. i on the 13th of iday; 1955, coucerning ihe financia.
uspects of their sepiraiioa, thoir marriage had boes on the rocks foxr soms time.

2
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Tiecy had seperated e 1992, It appeared the lsy def.ondant wanted to make good

i

by bkils estranged wife, e ofiercd her the following.

(1) To continue being tie: Manager of
Caukiks Cove Limited.

(11) Gccup~vioe of che villa as the Manager

(iii) Comcrul of 50% oi the shares in ihe company
for life by exgercising a Power of Atioriey.

in return foc ithoge she was requirzsd to withdiew her claim for maintenaacs
uteley the Matrimouial Caus:o Act. She was not o makz avy claim against the
isi defendant for division ei property under the Married Wowan's Proparty Acc.
Sk. was noc to make any clzin on the Znd defendant for suy property it held

oi behalfi of the lst def_pdant.

This secus to bave suiied the plaintiff dowun ic the ground for she prompily

wichdrev her maintenaunc: claim and wmade no othur claims. She kept her side of

<:) th: bargain.

Their merriage was disolved in March, 1994 and with it went all rignts of
asciion which the plaiutiif had under the acis woniidoned avove. On the 20th
of Fubruary, 1995, chree momburs of the Board of Divcctors at a meeting purporta:d
w0 terminate the servicos of the plaintiff as Managing Director on flimsy and
spurious grouads in breach oi the Management Agrecact. The defendants had
failed to kecp their sid: of the barpaiu. She ned acted to her dutriment based
on ihe copresentations wmad: (o her by the lst deivadant. Tioe plaintiff had
lost all her interest aigior (he contruct and thosr 1o the letter becausse of
wrongful cerminumtion ot hii coutract of cmploym.at by the defendauts. The
dzfendants are thersiora cspopped from denyiag ife plaiutiff s1l che privileges

she @ujoyed on oClliyy, On “RTLY YEPruseRLULlon.

fu closing ther. is just cuc other aspect ol the case to be discussad.
From the very ouiset che deflondants have contendsd thai this was not a proper
action to be brought oy Originating Summons. My, Heary referred to the 1985
wdition of English Suprome Court Practice, Ordex 5/4; and Halsbury Laws of
gugland 4th kdition, Voluw. 37, paragraph 130; and subwitted that the facts and
lssucgsiscloced in the affidevits were subscantially disputed and that these

could only be properly deali witn oa ¢ Writ of bummons.
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He further submitted thar applications were being made for Specific Performance
sad Injunction and thal ihege could not be grantud on an Originating Summons.
nater on in the procewdings Counsel for the defendauis referred the Court to th
Jamaica Broadcasting Corpuratien case. As it tuwnid out this case was commenced
by Uriginatiug Summons and injunctiou was grantuod aud reccived the approval by
tie Court of Appeal. ‘Ihat pul paid to that coni:acion and accordingly, the
action conciuu=d as it brgan by Originating Swummous.

As stuued 1o my oral Judguent I find thai the. 2ud defendant' g ipurported noetice
werminating the plaiaviffic cmploymsnt amounted to o wrongful repudiation of her
Managewent Agreement,

Damages would ceriwinly not be an adequaie vomedy.

if vver there ie 4 caso that qualifies as :xecprional circumstances
vaiiing for mandatory injunciion this onc surzly dosus,

Accordingly, th2 dezleration and orders soughi “n paragraph ! - 6 of tha

originating summons as further amended on thw Zod of May, 1995 are granted as

prayed.



